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CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Hello, Mr. Inhoffer, how

are you?

MR. INHOFFER: Good.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: My name is Ed Vernick,

President of the board. Today we are meeting as a

committee on this matter. To my left is Deputy

Attorney General Michelle Albertson, to my right was

and will be Arthur Russo, who is our Executive

Director, and these three gentlemen are with the

committee, we make a recommendation to the full board

once we have deliberated.

I'm going to now do a -- Michelle is

supposed to give you instructions. We will wait until

Michelle comes back.

(Whereupon a brief recess was taken.)

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: We are to your part.

Deputy Attorney General Michelle Albertson will give

you instructions.

MS. ALBERTSON: Good afternoon. This is an

investigative inquiry that is being conducted by the

State Board of Professional Engineers pursuant to

N.J.S.A. 45:1-18. It is a fact-finding procedure

resulting from the board's review of a complaint and

as a result, the board is going to ask you some

questions regarding the matter. This is a voluntary

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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procedure. You do have the right to have legal

counsel present. I see that you don't have an

attorney here. Is that correct?

MR. INHOFFER: Correct.

MS. ALBERTSON: You understand that you

have the right to be represented by an attorney today?

MR. INHOFFER: Yes.

MS. ALBERTSON: Does the fact that you are

without counsel today indicate that you wish to

proceed without one?

MR. INHOFFER: Yes.

MS. ALBERTSON: At any point during the

inquiry, if you feel that it is necessary to obtain

the services of an attorney, you may request that the

inquiry be postponed so you can retain the services of

counsel. Do you understand?

MR. INHOFFER: Yes.

MS. ALBERTSON: Mr. Inhoffer, you should

know that your testimony will be taken under oath so

that the board can rely upon it in a subsequent

proceeding, if necessary. There are three possible

outcomes of today's inquiry, one, the board could find

no cause for action; two, the board could determine

that further investigation is required; or three, the

board could find that there has been a violation of

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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the statutes and regulations which it administers and

a disciplinary action could be initiated. Do you have

any questions?

MR. INHOFFER: None.

MS. ALBERTSON: Before we begin, is there

any committee member who wishes to be recused or

otherwise disclose any association which would make

that member unable to render an impartial decision? I

see no response from any committee member and you

should know that there is no board member recused at

this time in connection with this matter. I'm going

to hand you a list of all the board members. I would

like you to just look at it. I'd like to know after

you have looked at that list if you have any

information regarding any association or conflict of

interest of any board member which should be brought

to the board's attention?

MR. INHOFFER: I guess James Kelly would be

one.

MS. ALBERTSON: Do you have some type of

association with Mr. Kelly?

MR. INHOFFER: He has worked as the town

engineer for Oakland and reviewed the project which I

designed for a developer in Oakland on the water

system. I would imagine there is.

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348.9190
www r�innllnni- accnriatac rnm
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MS. ALBERTSON: So how long ago -- he

reviewed a project in Oakland?

MR. INHOFFER: Yes.

MR. VALENTI: To clarify that, Boswell

Engineering did it, not Mr. Kelly specifically or just

Boswell Engineering?

MR. INHOFFER: I had a lot of meetings with

him.

MR. VALENTI: With Jim Kelly?

MR. INHOFFER: Yes.

MS. ALBERTSON: And how long ago was that?

MR. INHOFFER: Two years ago.

MS. ALBERTSON: How many? I'm sorry.

MR. INHOFFER: Two.

MS. ALBERTSON: Two years ago. Just go off

the record for a second.

(Whereupon a discussion took place off the

record.)

MS. ALBERTSON: Mr. Inhoffer, I don't

believe that there is anything with regard to Oakland

Township here today. I think everything lies within

Stanhope, the Borough of Stanhope. But do you believe

that Mr. Kelly can -- do you have any objections to

Mr. Kelly participating?

MR. INHOFFER: No, not at all.

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609 ) 348-9190
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MS. ALBERTSON: Do you know him personally?

MR. INHOFFER: Just professionally, that's

it.

MS. ALBERTSON: And it was just this one

application a couple of years ago?

MR. INHOFFER: Yes.

MS. ALBERTSON: Okay. So you have no

objections if he participates in this proceeding at

the board level?

MR. INHOFFER: No.

MS. ALBERTSON: Okay. With that, then, was

there anybody else whose name you recognized on that

list that you may have had some association with or

may have a conflict of interest that you may know of?

MR. INHOFFER: The name Purcell strikes me

but I don't think it's the same one. No, that would

be the only one.

MS. ALBERTSON: So there is no association

with board member Purcell, this particular board

member?

MR. INHOFFER: Right.

MS. ALBERTSON: At this particular time I

will have the court reporter swear you in.

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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WENDELL INHOFFER,

having been first duly sworn, was examined and

testified as follows:

MS. ALBERTSON: Mr. Inhoffer, you can make

an opening statement before the board asks you

questions. Would you like to do that?

THE WITNESS: Let's just start with the

questions. It might be easier.

MS. ALBERTSON: Sounds good. I will turn

it over to the committee.

EXAMINATION

BY CHAIRMAN VERNICK:

Q• Mr. Inhoffer, could you first tell us about

your education?

A. My education? I am a 1956 graduate from

Princeton University with a degree in civil

engineering and a 1959 graduate of Princeton with a

Master's degree.

Q. In civil?

A. Civil.

Q. Can you tell us about your licensing?

A. I have been licensed in New Jersey since

1962.

Q As a professional engineer?

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609 ) 348-9190
www rinnIInni . accnriafAC rnm
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A. As a professional engineer.

Q. Do you have any other licenses in New

Jersey?

A. I had water treatment plant and water

distribution operator's licenses.

Q. Do you have any other licenses in any other

states?

A. I have a license in Pennsylvania and a

license, P.E. license in New York.

Q. Thank you. Can you tell us about your work

experience?

A. Most of my work experience has been

associated with water supply. I was the general

superintendent and chief engineer of Passaic Valley

Water Commission 29 years and decided that I couldn't

retire so I continued water supply engineering.

Q. What year did you retire, sir?

A. I retired in 1995. And I just kept on

working for developers and municipalities, industries,

doing water, wastewater, drainage, just kept going.

Q. Do you have your own firm?

A. I'm the firm, one guy.

Q. And what is the name, it's called Wendell

Inhoffer?

A. Yes. I also have a name which I don't use

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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too often but it's called Delta Water Group. It shows

up on some of my jobs.

Q. For the project we are here today, what --

A. Wendell Inhoffer, P.E.

Q. Okay. Getting straight to why we are here

today, are you familiar with Block 10902, Lots 10, 11

and 12 of the Borough of Stanhope?

A. Yes.

Q. What was your involvement and how did you

first get involved?

A. I was asked by the developer, which is Mr.

Frank Dawalt, who I guess is part of ENF Development

Company, and someone that I have known --

Q. Can I ask you to do me a favor, we have

been here since 9 o'clock. Can you raise your voice a

little bit?

A. Okay. Mr. Dawalt and I have been friends

for many years, as I was also the Byram Township

engineer from 1980 to 1990, and he asked me if I would

take on this project, which seemed like a simple

project, and it turned out to be kind of a long-winded

affair between all of the board meetings and the

changes in scope and --

Q- What was the project?

A. The project was just to lay out three

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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houses on three existing lots. That was the project.

Q. When were you contracted with Mr. Dawalt?

A. For this job?

Q. For this job.

A. I guess around 2000 because I had -- Mr.

Dawalt, I had worked with Mr. Dawalt on two other

houses in the neighborhood over the past eight years,

I guess.

Q. What was your involvement with those two

houses, those three houses?

A. My involvement was just taking the

footprint that he wanted, placing it on what were

usually very bad lots in terms of steep slope, doing

grading, drainage, slope analysis and utility work.

That was my involvement, and of course, I presented

the projects at the meetings.

Q. Those other houses, then we will get to

this, were they single family houses?

A. Yes.

Q. Did they go in front of a board?

A. Yes.

Q. Was it a Planning Board?

A. Planning Board.

Q. This project, I take it you look at the

site?

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
www.cipoIIoni-associates.com
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A. Right.

Q. And you become involved sometime in 2000,

late '99?

A. Yes.

Q. And your job was to get three houses

approved in this minor subdivision?

A. Correct. Excuse me, it was not -- at that

time, it was not a subdivision. These were three

existing lots filed under the new Map Act, filed in

1961. There was no subdivision involved initially.

Q. Then what happened?

A. Then the town fathers decided that they

would rather see two homes there instead of three.

Q. But you initially submitted three homes?

A. We did.

Q. And where was that submitted to, the

planning or zoning board?

A. I think that went to the zoning board,

which is now the Land Use Board, and they decided that

if we were going to pursue three lots, that there

might be some strong objections. There were

objections from the neighbors, nothing new, and Mr.

Dawalt decided that he would forego the middle lot,

that would be subdivided and consolidated with the

adjacent lots.

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609 ) 348-9190
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Q. He had the right to build three houses?

A. Yes, he did. He had the right. He needed

a variance because as you know, a 1961 filed map

wherein the lot lines are protected and it can only be

changed by a Planning Board, those lots, like most

lots, become undersized with time, as zoning changes,

and therefore, every lot that goes before a board

needs a variance.

Q. So he unilaterally decided, Mr. Dawalt,

because he had heard all of these objections, he was

going to come back with a minor subdivision of two

lots?

A. Correct.

Q. He did this because he thought, I guess,

the perception was maybe it would be more acceptable

to the residents?

A. Exactly, and to the board.

Q. And to the board. So did he hire you to

draw up the minor subdivision?

A. No, that was done by Judy Keith, who is the

surveyor.

Q. So he hires Judy Keith to do these two

lots.

A. Right.

Q. When was your involvement after that?

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
WWW.CiDoIIoni acsoriatec rnm
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A. We just continued with our revisions in

terms of grading two lots instead of three. We did

find a major problem in that the storm drain, which

was a community storm drain owned by the borough, was

not on the easement, it was on the opposite side of

the middle lot and we had to go through that major

change. We had to move the storm drain.

Q. Let me do this while you are there: We are

kind of getting ahead but that's fine. This map, S-1,

which is previously -- are you familiar with this

map --

A. That's the original one.

Q. Are you familiar with it?

A. Yes.

Q. Point out where you can, you have to

describe it because we are on record.

A. Apparently, you see a drainage easement

here but the pipe was over here.

sort

Q. Let me help you. The drainage easement was

of in the middle of what was three lots. Is that

correct?

A.

A.

Q

Yes.

Just for the sake of description.

Yes.

And what was the next thing you said? Is25 1 Q

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
WWW.CiDOI IOni-aSSOCiatPS nnm
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this where the pipe was?

A. Yes, the drainage easement officially was

on the common lot line of Lot 11 and 12. The pipeline

was on the -- near the common lot line of 10 and 11.

A.

Q. Which is where the pipe was?

Correct.

Q. So you discovered that while the easement

was in one place, the pipe was in another?

A. Correct.

Q. What did that prompt you to do?

A. We had to move the pipeline and create a

new easement.

Q. How did you move the pipeline?

A. Relocated it.

Q. Where was the pipeline before?

A. Straight through here, which would have

been under the house. So we relocated the pipeline.

Q. Around the house?

A. Yes. Into which house?

Q. Around the house on Lot 10. Is that

correct?

A. On Lot 10, correct.

Q. So your involvement initially was the

grading, paving and drainage. Is that correct?

A. And utilities.

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
WWW.CIDOIIo ni �ssOCiatP� r,nm
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Q. And utilities. Miss Keith did the

consolidation of the three lots to two lots in her

survey, right?

A. And the topography.

Q. And the topography so she gave you the

existing topography?

A. Correct.

Q. You then proposed new grading, new drainage

and essentially worked within the plan?

A. That's right.

Q. Now, in the drainage, we earlier saw

testimony from the Borough Engineer, what was approved

as far as the drainage goes. That's in blue. I don't

know if you can see it.

A. Yes.

Q. Is that your design?

A. Yes.

Q. Could you describe briefly what you were

proposing for the drainage?

A. It was an extension of I believe a 30 inch

pipe and we added two manholes, which were convenient

to additional drainage, which was designed, and we

just changed the alignment from a straight line to an

offset.

Q. And also you did the drainage for Lot 12,

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
www.CiDOIIoni -assnriites r.nm
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which became Lot 12?

A. Yes.

Q. The minor subdivision, which connected into

that drainage system?

A. Correct.

Q. Tell me about the grading that went on.

A. It was a difficult lot because it had a

very steep slope along the road. As a matter of fact,

Oak Road was apparently filled in the old days so that

left a very steep slope here and some flat areas

throughout, fairly flat, relatively flat throughout

the rest of the lot. So that we had to fit a house on

the two lots that would respect the grade such that we

could meet the height limitations and also to provide

for in one case on Lot 10 some substantial subsurface

water that was emanating from the corner of the lot

and of course, the surface runoff from all three lots

or two lots subsequently, all surface runoff had to be

contained and drained away such that no water went on

the back properties because the people to the rear

were very concerned about runoff onto their property.

Q. At some point during the grading of this

lot, there was no wall. Is that true?

A. At some point --

Q. At some point initially, it came to my

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609 ) 348-9190
www.cioolloni-associates.com
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attention that there was not a wall to be constructed

in the rear of the property. Is that an accurate

statement?

A. Quite frankly, I cannot remember doing any

grading without the use of low walls.

Q. Let's go there, then. There was an 18 foot

conservation buffer in the rear of the property?

A. That's correct.

Q. That's shown 18 feet in the rear of the

property, as you can see hatched in this plan.

A.

A.

Yes.

Q. Are you familiar with that?

Yes.

Q. What is your familiarity with the

conservation buffer?

A. It was not to be encroached upon for any

reason other than the storm drain that went through

it, which was part of the plan. The conservation

buffer was not to be disturbed.

Q. Was there a proposal for a wall to be

constructed?

A. In the vicinity of the conservation buffer?

Q. Yes.

A. I'm almost positive there wasn't.

Q. You don't remember a wall or you do

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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remember a wall?

A. If I could look at my first drawing --

Q. Take your time.

A. If I could look at my first drawing but I'm

not sure I have that. That would be 9/15. 9/15,

lucked out.

Q. Let me see. We have to mark it. Let me

get it marked. Let me look at it and then we will

describe it. This is dated, revised 9/15/2000. Could

you mark this plan.

(Whereupon the document was received and

marked R-1 for identification.)

Q- This is R-1. Can you by using R-1 and

anything you need to describe the wall that was

proposed and then as was constructed?

MR. PURCELL: Mr. Inhoffer, before you do

that, could you identify this for the record, read the

title block, let the stenographer get it in.

THE WITNESS: The title block is lot line

adjustment and the date is September 20, 1999.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Revised.

THE WITNESS: Revised for lot line

adjustment 9/15/00.

Q. Could you talk to us about the wall.

A. On the 9/15 revision, there was a wall,

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609 ) 348.9190
www.cipolIoni-associates. corn
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substantial, in fact, there were two walls shown which

were on this plan so apparently, we should really go

back to the September 20, 1999. I'm not -- this

revision only relates to lot line adjustment so I

would assume that the September 20, 1999, contained a

wall.

Q. There is a wall on this drawing here. I

don't know if this helps you.

A. But of course, we are not sure --

Q. There is a wall.

A. There is a wall, no question about it. I

would just assume from the data before us that the

wall was on the drawing dated September 20, 1999.

Q. Its on the plan, it's on that plan.

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the wall, Mr. Inhoffer?

A. Designing it?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes.

Q. What was the purpose of the wall?

A. The wall was to elevate the property along

the rear of the house so that the prospective owner

coming out of the basement level would come onto an

area that they could walk on.

Q. So it was testified earlier, and I think

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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you would agree, the wall was put in sort of as a

retaining wall in order to have a backyard?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that fair?

A. Yes, that's true.

Q. Did that wall, I'm assuming it did, did the

Board of Adjustment, if this plan went, I know we are

kind of getting ahead, this plan was submitted to the

Board of Adjustment for approval, was the wall on the

plan when it was submitted to the Board of Adjustment

of the Borough of Stanhope?

A. Do you have the date when the submission

was made?

MR. ANGELINE: The first application, we

do.

THE WITNESS: The first application.

MR. ANGELINE: It was September 11, 1999.

Q. My understanding, Mr. Inhoffer, there were

revisions, there was more than one Board of Adjustment

meeting you attended.

A. Yes.

Q. Even after you decided to build two houses

or Dawalt decided to build two houses, there were

several meetings. Is that a fair characterization?

A. Yes, absolutely.
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Q. Is it fair to say that the wall wasn't

there initially but at some point during the

submissions, the wall showed up or was the wall there

the whole time?

A. To my recollection, the wall was always

part of -- this is my recollection now, the wall was

always a part of the design.

Q. And how did you visualize this wall working

structurally and also as part of -- how it was placed

with the conservation buffer?

A. We had to keep it behind the conservation

buffer and normally we were trying to hold, without

going to two walls, trying to hold to about four feet.

Q. Four feet --

A. In height.

Q. In height. If it was more than four feet

in height, what would you do?

A. We would step it.

Q. And is it your sense by stepping it, that

you wouldn't violate the height ordinance for a wall?

A. That's correct.

Q. How many walls did you propose to be built,

was it one? I'm confused by this. I keep hearing one

wall, then there was a second wall built. I can't

figure out if it's all one wall or if there was a
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second wall built because -- let me testify, give you

the testimony of the Borough Engineer. His testimony

was there was a wall built. It was as high as eight

feet in some places. It varied in height but in some

places, it was eight feet. It tapered as you got to

Lot 10. But there became a concern from the residents

so he recommended a second wall be built between that

wall and the conservation easement. This was his

testimony.

Is any of this familiar with you at all?

A. Not really because number one, I wasn't on

the job as an inspector and if there was an eight foot

wall, I probably would have heard about it because

from the topography that we had, it could have been

slightly different but not eight feet.

Q. Your proposal of the initial wall was

supposed to be what, a four foot wall?

A. Four, maybe five at the most.

Q. And if it were greater than four, you were

going to step it to meet the ordinance. Is that what

you were going to do?

A. Yes.

Q. So in your involvement, you wouldn't have

known if it got -- in other words, you designed this

and that was the end of the project for you?
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A. Unless I was called out on a specific

issue, that's essentially the end of the project.

Q. Were you called out on a specific issue?

A. On the eight foot wall?

Q. On any issues.

A. Oh, yes.

Q. What were the issues you were called out

on?

A. I was called out on some foundation issues.

Q. Foundation of the house?

A. Of the houses.

Q. Go ahead.

A. That kind of thing; on some drainage

issues, springs that showed up when we started

digging.

Q. Let's stay with the wall. Were you ever

brought out for the wall at all?

A. No.

Q. After you put this on your plan, again, I'm

asking you is that one wall or two walls? You said

two walls.

A. Actually, at one point, if you look at the

cross-section, it's probably three.

Q. Let me see the cross-sections. Let me take

a look at it.
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A.

A.

One, two, three.

Q. And each wall steps?

Yes.

So you picked up grade as you went?

Correct.

Q. And you did that, again, not to violate

this six foot ordinance in the rear yard. Is that

correct?

A. Essentially correct, yes.

Q. Which plan was approved, is it that plan

sitting on that easel, to your knowledge? It seems to

have all the revisions. I'm assuming that's the plan.

It's signed by everybody so I'm assuming that's the

approved plan.

A. Yes, that has the signatures on it.

Q. So you would agree that that's the approved

17

18

19

20

21

plan?

A. Yes.

Q. So that's the way it probably should have

been built?

A.

22

23 A.

24

25 1 A.

Correct.

Q. How many walls are on that plan?

Back to three.

Q. What's that, sir?

Three.
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Q. Three walls. So it was your impression to

keep stepping?

A. Correct.

Q. So that you could make up the grade without

having to --

A. And one wall was really a containment wall

for a new storm drain that we had to put in through

the property so that we took two walls, one here, one

here and then this section, we put a storm drain.

Q. Understood. But it is possible that if

they didn't build it that way, instead of

building three walls, they built one or two walls, the

wall might have been greater than six feet?

A. If they built one? Oh, yes.

Q. Or if they built two? It seems to me you

were trying to break it up?

A. I would break it up, if I had to make a

decision, and of course, on a job like this, when you

are working in boulders and trees that you are trying

to retain, it's not unusual to have field changes so

that -- but these changes are usually initiated by the

inspector or township engineer who comes in and says

hey, that's not going to work. And therefore, the

township engineer would work with the developer in the

field to make the change.
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Q. Would the developer then call you as his

engineer and say get out there and talk to the Borough

Engineer and facilitate a change?

A. Not necessarily.

Q. Were you called out there?

A. Not on walls.

Q. Not --

A. Not on walls.

Q. So you were never brought out on these

walls?

A. I don't remember ever going out on a wall.

But you really saw this as a plan of

Yes.

Q. Let's go to the drainage. Let me first

stay with the walls, if I can. Did you ever think,

and with all due respect, I'm looking at that plan,

did you ever think maybe a cross-section of a wall

would have helped somebody to build it? I mean in

retrospect, this wall obviously didn't get built the

way --

A. Actually, now on a subsequent job we are

working on, same engineer, same general circumstance,

they asked for cross-sections which we are giving

them.

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
www.cipolIon1-assoc1ates.com



29

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q. The only reason I bring that up is I don't

think this wall got built the way you perceived it in

your plan. I think they knew there was going to be a

wall there, whoever was building it, because you said

there is a wall there and they tried to match the

grade somewhat but I don't know that it was built

anything like what you did because it obviously got --

as I said, there is earlier testimony where the wall

got above eight feet high in some areas so obviously,

they weren't stepping it, they were doing it sort of

all at once. I only bring up the cross-section

because something went haywire with the wall.

A. I can tell you that there was no eight foot

wall out there when I was there. And even if the

developer had tried to do it, he wouldn't get past Mr.

Cilo for five minutes. It's not going to happen.

Q. I would submit to you Mr. Cilo said that

there was some areas, it was over eight feet in

earlier testimony, just so you know.

MR. ANGELINE: Eight, possibly nine.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Possibly nine.

Q. Having said that, you were not called out

on the site?

A. No.

Q. You were never questioned about the wall.
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Let's talk about the conservation buffer. Other than

the drainage section, you were not to touch anything

in the conservation buffer. Is that your

understanding?

A. Yes.

Q. In your drainage design, did you get called

out in the field at all from what you designed for

drainage? Was there any field changes required?

A. There were some minor changes required.

Q. What were they?

A. They were concerning the final grade of the

grate on some of the manholes that had to be adjusted,

all minor in nature. There was no major drainage

consideration on this job.

Q. In the planning, in the zoning board

hearings that you were at, were there resident

complaints about this project, to your recollection?

A. There was on occasion some complaints that

would get back to me about after a heavy rain, about

silt running through people's property and --

Q. I'm talking about during the hearing that

you were having.

A. During the hearings?

Q. Yes.

A. The neighbors to the rear were concerned
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about drainage coming onto their property.

Q. And what did you do to alleviate their

concerns?

A. That's why we had the 18 foot buffer there.

In fact, we picked up all the drainage from the rest

of the property into a system that went into the

municipal drains.

Q. All right. During the hearings, going back

to the hearings, were trees an issue on this site, to

your recollection?

A. Yes, they were.

Q- Were the trees that they were concerned

about, was it just on the 18 foot conservation buffer

or was it on the rest of the site outside of the

conservation buffer?

A. Most of the concern was the conservation

buffer because that was the barrier between the

existing homes and the new homes, which stood up

pretty high, I mean relatively speaking.

Q. You are saying there was no concern about

any other trees outside of the conservation buffer?

A.

A.

I don't recall.

Q. Do you remember four trees?

Yes.

Q. Do you want to show on the map and describe
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where those four trees were?

A. They were in this vicinity here.

Q. Describe it as close to where the temporary

construction entrance is.

A. The southerly boundary line of Lot 10.

Q. Okay. What was the concern about those

four trees?

A. The concern was by the plaintiff after they

were cut down.

Q. You never heard a thing before they were

cut down?

A. No, nothing.

You had no knowledge to preserve those

trees?

A. No.

Q. That temporary construction entrance where

those four trees were, approximately --

A. They were a little above that.

Q• That entrance, did you have anything to do

with that entrance being submitted and approved, the

entrance off of East Ave.?

A. I know that ultimately, it was used as a

construction entrance. I believeQ. I think is it on that plan there? I'm not

sure. It's on some plan somewhere. I think it's
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there.

A. It's not on this one. I believe there was

a temporary stone wheel cleaner, I think.

Q. Yes, were you involved with that and why

was that, if you were, why was that put in?

A. It was put in mainly because there was no

other way to get a concrete truck into the site.

Q. At any point during the hearings or after

this was constructed, were you made aware of a

drainage problem in the adjacent areas, either on East

or on Valley?

A.

A.

Off site?

Q. Yes.

No.

Q. You talked about a stream. You talked

about a spring, I think you used the word spring.

A. Yes.

Q. Where was that spring?

A. On site right here.

Q. Is that the area that was described as

wetlands?

A. It was just above it. As a matter of fact,

that was the result of the spring was the little

wetland.

Q. What was your proposal with the spring?
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A. Since we had received a permit to fill the

wetlands, and we were putting a storm drain back up

into that area to catch this whole side of the

property, we put a subsurface perforated drain right

up into the base of that, of this end of the property

right here that probably went up 15 feet, at least,

into the area where the seepage was coming out

constantly.

Q. Were you made aware of a sinkhole on Mr.

Caggiano's property?

A.

A

I heard about it.

Q. Did you see it?

No.

Q. Were you made aware in Valley of a breach

of the silt fence?

A. I heard about it.

Q. Did you see it?

A. I went out to look.

Q . And?

A. There was no breach of anything.

Q. When you went out to look, was the silt

fence still intact?

A. Yes.

Q. Where was the silt fence supposed to go?

A. Right here. There it is.
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Q. I think it also extends out onto Lot 12?

A. Yes. It's right across the whole back.

Q. You said when you went out, it was still

intact?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see any boulders on Valley?

A. Boulders?

Q. Boulders, rocks, stones.

A. No, nothing. And I might add that of all

the pictures that were taken of this site, that would

have been the most extreme. I never saw a picture of

it. I went out there and I looked and I walked up

there because I heard about this complaint and there

was nothing. There was no silt, there was nothing.

Q. And with Mr. Caggiano's sinkhole, did you

look?

A. No. I wouldn't go on his property.

Q. Let me ask you this: Going back to the --

moving you back and forth, I want to get some stuff on

the record. Back in the hearing, were you aware of

the ordinances that dealt with steep slopes?

A. Absolutely.

Q. What was your analysis of this, of these

two lots which became two lots as far as it pertains

to the steep slope ordinance?
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A. Of course, that was all done in the

preliminary stages of design because that dictated the

need for a variance. As a matter of fact, I think I

was the first one to figure out how the steep slope

ordinance worked and how it was calculated.

Q. Can you describe to me how the steep slope

ordinance worked? We went round and round about it

this morning.

A. You know, everything over -- any slope over

25 percent, you have got ten percent use of the land,

you have a 10 percent factor, 15 to 25, you had

another percent factor; less than 15, you had a factor

and you laid all these numbers out and at the end of

the -- I have it over here, it's very complicated and

as a matter of fact, when I submitted it to the zoning

board, Mr. Cilo and I got into a little discussion

about what it said, what it meant and how it worked.

But you came up with a number which

exceeded the number that was permissible for that lot

and you asked for a variance, which you normally got.

I mean it was a good attempt to recognize the fact

that there are steep slopes and they had to be

addressed.

Q. So you did your calculations, submitted it

to Mr. Cilo and you said this violates the ordinance?
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A. Oh, yes. It didn't violate anything, I

mean it just didn't meet the requirements and

therefore, we had to get a variance.

Q. It doesn't meet the ordinance. When you

said there are factors, what are those factors

pertaining to? You said if it's above 25 percent --

A. If I had 10 minutes, I could figure it out

again. It's one of those things that you just can't

sit down and do.

Q. I understand. That's fine. Let me take

you through, try to clean this up right now. I think

I'm done with most of it. Let me have one second. I

just want to make sure we have enough on the record

here. Your involvement with Mr. Cilo, you had direct

communication with him?

A. Yes, well documented.

Q. Let me show you this. We are going to mark

this as S-2. This is something I have been working

from.

(Whereupon the document was received and

marked S-2 for identification.)

Q. You can look at S-2. You now see this

construction access?

A. Yes.

Q. You remember it now?
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A. Yes.

Q - This was approved, this was asked by you

for approval?

A. This is part of the soil erosion and

sediment control plan.

Q. Yes.

A. Which went to the county.

Q. You asked for the approval for the

concrete?

A. Yes, for access.

Q. Did this construction have anything to do

with the trees being removed?

A. No.

Q. That's what I wanted to get at. Now, it

would have been removed regardless if that would have

been put in or not, correct?

A. Absolutely. You can see new contours going

right through that area.

Q. During the hearings, was it brought up

about the trees outside of the conservation buffer,

most of them would have to go?

A. Because the lot would be regraded.

A. I don't recall any discussions concerning

trees other than those in the 18 foot buffer zone.

Q. Since this -- strike that. The
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installation of the silt fence, did you visit the site

to inspect the silt fence to make sure that it was put

where it was supposed to be put? Was that your

function?

A. That wasn't my function but I can't say

that I didn't see it when I did visit the site.

Q. You intended the silt fence was to be on

one edge of the conservation buffer, correct?

A.

A

That's correct, and around the --

Q. Drainage system?

The drainage system.

Q. How involved were you during the

construction of this project? How often were you

brought out?

A. Only if there was an issue of, let's say,

soil bearing for footings for the decks, I did some of

that, I took some samples, did bearing tests on some

groundwater issues, on footings, I was there on that.

I wasn't out there every week. I was not the

inspector on the job in terms of --

Q. Who would call you out?

A. Mr. Dawalt.

Q. Did you have any conversations with Soil

Conservation District, Sussex County?

A. Minimal.
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Q. Did they tell you to put a berm around an

inlet and put some dry wells in for the roof leaders?

A. Oh, yes, dry wells.

Q. You remember that?

A. That was an addition, part of their

recommendations that Mr. Sedivy made and I believe at

that time, he said that the regulations that they were

working under required us to put sufficient volume in

to retain 50 percent of the two year storm, which we

did.

Q. So you put it in?

A. Yes.

Q. And you put the berm around the inlet, as

recommended?

A. It was bermed up pretty good there.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: That's all I have right

now.

BY MR. VALENTI:

Q. Those changes requested by Mr. Sedivy,

where are they reflected on the plan or where do we

see that somewhere, the amendments to the plan?

A. I think that they would be probably in the

as builts in terms of the seepage pits. I really

would have to search the records to find that.

Q. Do you have the as builts in front of you?
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A. I have them in my response to the board's

letter, the as builts. These look like as builts to

me. It says location survey. But I do not see any

seepage pits shown on these.

Q. Can I ask you what you are looking at

there, are those the as built drawings that you

included in your response?

A. Yes.

MR. VALENTI: Would you mind having those

marked as exhibits.

THE WITNESS: Sure.

(Whereupon the documents were received and

marked R-2 and R-3 for identification.)

A. I have a drawing here with the seepage pits

on them.

Q. I'm sorry, what are you looking at, Mr.

Inhoffer?

A. What is the date on that?

Q. The date on Exhibit S-1, it looks like

something 29/01, maybe 6/29/01.

A. Five.

Q. 5/29/01.

A. Here it is, seepage pits here, here and

here.

MR. VALENTI: Can we have this one marked,
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too.

(Whereupon the document was received and

marked R-4 for identification.)

A.

Q. Would you like to be seated, Mr. Inhoffer.

Fine.

Q. Feel free to stand but you don't need to.

Mr. Inhoffer, you just marked Exhibit R-4, which is a

document entitled "Lot line adjustment and soil

erosion and sediment control plan," which is a drawing

signed by you and Judith Keith as land surveyor with

the final revision date, it looks like, of 9/24/02.

Are you familiar with this drawing?

A.

A.

Yes.

Q. It came out of your files?

Yes.

Q. This appears to be the latest revision that

we have seen of any of the plans for this site. Is

that right?

A. It has to be.

Q. Okay. To your knowledge, is this the final

version of the plans?

A. I can't answer that. There could be

another one.

Q. This one has a signature from the Sussex

County Soil Conservation District, which is dated
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10/8/02. Is that right?

A. That's right.

Q. And it would appear that this is the

version, then, that was submitted to the Sussex County

Soil Conservation District for approval?

A.

A.

Yes, that's correct.

Q. And eventually did receive approval?

Yes.

Q. Is that for Lot 10, 12 or both?

A. 10.

Q. 10.

A. Only.

Q. Okay. Mr. Inhoffer, I want to ask you

about your activities during construction. You have

indicated that you had limited construction

observation responsibilities?

A. Correct.

Q. And that you really did not do any

inspection with respect to the wall. Is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. I want to show you R-2 which came out of

your file, which is an as built drawing by Pittenger &

Keith, and ask you if you are familiar with that?

A. Yes.

Q. How do you have that in your file? Why do

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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you have a copy of that?

A. This is my D-2 exhibit based on the

response.

Q. I understand you provided that previously

to the board as part of your response to the

complaint.

A. That's correct.

Q. But why do you have the as built drawings

in your file? Did you have any responsibility or role

with respect to the as builts?

A. I guess because the item F in the complaint

spoke about as builts and walls. I responded to it.

Q. Did you obtain this drawing, R-2, in

response to the complaint or did you have it already

in your file?

A. I think it was in my file.

Q. Did you have any responsibility on as built

drawings?

A. Only on one occasion.

Q. For what?

A. For a small drawing I made for Mr. Cilo

whereby we eliminated a wall on Lot 10 that was

supposed to contain the sanitary sewer but we were

able to relocate the sewer and do away with the wall

and he said give me a drawing for my file to make it

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
WWW.CiDOI IOni-associates.cOm



45

1

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

complete, which I did.

Q. Can you take a look at R-2, drawing signed

by Pittenger & Keith.

A. Yes.

Q. And take a look at the dimensioning of the

wall that you talked a lot about so far. Would you

help me understand the dimensioning of the wall. I'm

going to point an area out to you. It's towards the

right-hand side of this drawing, it would appear that

there is a notation of 148.1 TW.

A. Top of wall.

Q. And immediately adjacent to that on the

opposite side of the wall, which would be at the base

of the wall, I assume, is an elevation of what?

A.

A.

A.

138.8.

Q. So how high --

Up to 142.8.

Q. I'm sorry, 148.8?

138.8.

Q . To?

A. To 142.1.

Q. Where do you see that?

A. Here.

Q. Is that 148.1?

A. No, that's 142. You could ask Miss Keith

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
www.cipol Ioni-associates.corn



46

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

when she comes in because I have trouble with her

number, too.

A.

Q. That's a three foot wall?

It's a three foot wall.

Q. That's what I wanted to understand. So as

far as you know, the as built wall that's out there is

not eight feet in any location?

A. No way.

Q. Everything is as you suggested before, four

feet or less?

A. Yes. And the difference between this and

what is on the drawing is the field adjustments that

are made in the field because of boulders, trees, et

cetera. It could be anything.

Q. Did you ever have conversations with Mr.

Sedivy about the soil erosion and sediment control

plans?

A. I probably did because he is the contact

man when it comes to engineering but I know he was the

one that gave me the spec on these seepage pits.

Q. Did you ever meet him in the field?

A. I might have, yes, I think we met once in

the field, I think.

Q. Do you know Peter Schneider?

A. Yes.
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Q. Who is he?

A. He is a soils and structural engineer.

Q. What was his involvement with this project?

A. He had done a lot of walls, rock walls, and

Mr. Dawalt hired him to come out and certify that the

walls were structurally sound and that they met the

requirements of the borough.

Q. Did you hire Mr. Schneider?

A. No, I recommended him.

Q. You recommended him. Had you worked with

him before?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what work Mr. Schneider

actually did on the project?

A. I wasn't there.

Q. Are you familiar with --

A. I know he wrote a letter certifying that

the walls were structurally sound and generally met

the requirements of the ordinance.

Q. To your knowledge, is that correct, that

the wall is structurally sound?

A. You know, as an engineer, dealing with rock

walls and making believe they are similar in terms of

reactions and response to gravity concrete walls is a

little dangerous and quite frankly, I don't like
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giving opinions on rock walls because right after I

left the Township of Byram as the township engineer, a

so-called stable rock in a stable wall blew out and

killed a kid and rock walls -- this was a big one.

Rock walls here are three, four feet high. If one

rock rolls out, it's not the end of the world. But

areawise, it's kind of a farce to apply retaining wall

calculations to rock walls per se, I think. That's my

nonstructural opinion as a hydraulic engineer.

Q• You designed the wall, right?

A. Yes, I designed the wall. I laid one out,

yes.

Q. Was the wall constructed in accordance with

your plans, as far as you know?

A. Schneider said it was. Again, designing a

rock wall, it's not something that an engineer just

sits down and designs. Rocks don't respond to

overturning moments the way a concrete wall would

respond.

Q. I guess I'm a little confused by the point

you are trying to get to.

A. My point is that if you put three and four

foot walls up in accordance with the design that was

on that plan, it's going to stay and be stable and

that's it. But if we start talking about design and
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sliding factors and overturning moments, we are not in

that ballpark. The wall is stable. The one that was

shown in that plan, as a matter of fact, isn't even

drawn accurately but it's stable. Three foot bottom,

four foot vertical and 18 inches on the top, it's not

going to turn over. It's not going to go anywhere.

Q. Is there a detail of that wall on the plan?

A. There should be one. That's just one

sheet, though.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: I have seen no detail.

THE WITNESS: On the rock wall?

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: None. If you can submit

one, it would be the first we have seen all day.

THE WITNESS: Is that right?

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: That would be correct.

That's what we have been trying to get to.

Q. Was there another plan that goes along with

this?

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: I have looked through

900 pages and I haven't seen a detail on the wall.

All I see is little what looks like pebbles. It could

be plants, it could be wall but it says, "Wall."

That's the only indication that it's a wall. There is

no cross-sections, no profiles.

MR. PURCELL: No top of wall shown in a
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couple of places.

BY MR. VALENTI:

Q. Mr. Inhoffer, do you recall that there is

an actual cross-section of the wall, detail of the

wall or design of the wall?

A. I don't have all the drawings with me,

that's the problem.

Q. But if I could just focus you in on my

question, do you have a recollection that you did do a

design of the wall?

A. We did have a design of a wall with, you

know, height and an angle and the front angle and a

bottom width.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Where would that be?

It's in nothing that has been submitted here or --

THE WITNESS: You haven't seen anything?

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Nothing, have not seen a

detail of the wall, I haven't seen a cross-section, I

haven't seen a profile of the storm sewer, I have seen

nothing. That plan is what I have been working with

through this whole thing. That's it.

THE WITNESS: In terms of this job, I will

search my file and see what I have.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Let me ask the question

another way, if I can, Mr. Valenti, on the same issue.
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MR. VALENTI: Please.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Do you think there

should have been a construction detail on the wall?

This isn't a trick question.

THE WITNESS: I understand. I would assume

that there would normally be a construction detail

because we have one.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: If we said to you, Mr.

Inhoffer, go back to your office, you have got 30

days, find the detail on the wall, submit it to this

board, would that be unreasonable for you?

THE WITNESS: I could probably even do

better.

MS. ALBERTSON: Do you have it here?

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: If you had it, it would

be wonderful.

THE WITNESS: I have a detail but -- this

is the detail which is normally on our drawings.

MR. VALENTI: Would you like us to have it

marked?

THE WITNESS: Fine. That's our standard

rock detail.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: But does this apply to

this job?

THE WITNESS: This is a different -- if I
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had a construction detail sheet, which I'm sure there

was, why wouldn't you have it or why wouldn't I have

it?

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Here is what I'm asking:

You have 30 days. Is that okay?

MS. ALBERTSON: Before our next board

meeting.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Before our next board

meeting, which is July 20th, if you could submit to us

any other information, I'm talking not just the wall,

this is it, this is what we have been working with or

versions of this plan. And it's so cramped in, I

don't know how this got built, to be honest with you.

This to me is more like a minor subdivision plan and

everybody threw all the stuff on it. Somehow this got

built. And I don't know how it got built, to be

honest with you, the way you wanted to design it

because there is very little detail that comes with

this. If you have anything that could help us, that

would be very beneficial in us making our decision

here. You have -- what is today's date? You have

until July 20th. Would that be unreasonable to ask?

THE WITNESS: No. I mean we either have it

or we don't.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: And if you don't, just
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tell us you don't have it. That's all we want.

THE WITNESS: I will tell you, that's all.

MR. VALENTI: Mr. Inhoffer, I will

continue. Please be seated.

BY MR. VALENTI:

Q. On that issue, what President Vernick was

just referring to, apparently we have one plan, the

plan you just talked about and you provided us with an

updated version of that. Is there an actual document

called a site plan for this project?

A. No.

Q. And to your knowledge, are there other

sheets that go along with this one sheet?

A. On this job, I don't have it here, if there

was, and there may be. But --

Q. Along the same lines, when you are checking

your records, if there are any other plan related

sheets that go along with the one sheet that we have

here marked now as R-4, we would need a copy of that,

also.

A. Okay.

Q. I want to go back to Mr. Schneider for a

minute. How did you describe the letter written by

Mr. Schneider before?

A. He went out and inspected the walls and
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said that -- I don't know if I have his letter or

not -- said that the walls were structurally sound and

I believe, I believe that he said that they met the

requirements of the borough, which now leads me to

wonder whether or not there isn't a borough detail on

a wall. I will have to check that out.

Q. Do you know, sir, why he spoke about the

wall complying with the regulations of the Borough of

Stanhope?

A. Because I think that there was a lot of

complaints going out, circulating and I mean everybody

was being bombarded beyond belief with complaints and

the walls were one of them, obviously, and I guess in

the developer's best interests, get someone out there

who can look at the wall and certify it. We are not

talking 12 foot walls, we are talking three and four

foot walls. It didn't seem like that big an issue.

Q. Do you know what kind of research he did to

reach the conclusion that it complied with all the

regulations of the Borough of Stanhope?

A. No.

Q. Did he speak to you about that?

A. No.

Q. Did you take his letter and use it for any

purpose after that point?
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A. No.

Q. Did you ever have a chance to review his

letter with him?

A. Not with him. I got a copy of it.

Q. How did you get a copy of it?

A. Probably from Mr. Dawalt.

Q. Was there any point where you or Mr. Dawalt

were using that letter to I will say prove in the

sense of trying to establish with somebody else that

the wall was complying with the regulations of

Stanhope?

A. You know, I think that the response on the

wall was just as much to provide information to Mr.

Cilo in terms of -- because he wasn't going to certify

the wall. So I think it was a combination of a lot of

things. The walls were not eight feet tall and they

weren't big deals in this kind of site.

Q. If I could bring you back to the question,

which was did you use that letter later in any

proceeding or meetings to show that the wall complied

with all the requirements of the Borough of Stanhope?

A. I don't recall doing that.

Q. Mr. Schneider was here earlier today and

testified that he consulted with you about the wall

before he wrote the letter. Do you recall that?
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A. No. But he could have. I don't recall a

discussion with Mr. Schneider about the letter because

I don't know what the purpose would be.

Q. He indicated that he talked to you about

the regulations of the Borough of Stanhope and that

you advised him that the wall was compliant with the

regulations of the Borough of Stanhope.

A. I wasn't there to see it built and I mean

how could I say that?

Q. Okay. So do you have any recollection of

that conversation with Mr. Schneider?

A. No.

Q. Do you believe that that conversation never

took place?

A. If we talked about his results and his

findings, what he thought he said and what I thought

he said may be two different things. But it was from

my point of view inconsequential. We needed a

certification to satisfy Mr. Cilo's request, which was

right, he should do that, and that's the way it was

done. I don't recall any long-winded discussion about

Schneider's results or his findings.

Q. As you sit here today, with what you know

about how the project has been constructed, and the

fact that you have an as built survey in your
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possession of the parcels, is there anything on the

site that you are aware of today that is not

consistent with the Stanhope regulations?

A. Nothing.

Q. Is there anything during the time of

construction, between the point of your final approved

design and during construction, while under way

construction, did you become aware of anything going

on out at the site that in your opinion was

potentially contrary to the Borough of Stanhope

regulations?

A. I will tell you, I have to be very honest,

I didn't agree with him on a lot of things but Mr.

Schneider was a bulldog on these things. He was the

inspector. He had an inspector out there and he

didn't mind writing letters and saying we want this

and we want that and we did it.

Q. If I could bring you back to the question,

which is are you aware of anything that was happening

on the site that was potentially a violation of the

Borough of Stanhope regulations?

A. No.

Q. And are you aware of anything that was

happening on the site during this construction period

that was potentially contrary to the soil erosion and
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sediment control permit?

A. No.

Q. I'm going to give you a wide open question

and look for some response from you here. Why are you

here? Mr. Caggiano has filed a complaint against you.

What do you understand this to be about as far as

why -- what did he expect you to do that you did not

do?

A. Caggiano?

Q. Yes.

A. That's a wonderful question and you left it

wide open. And I'm glad you did that. Have you ever

visited Mr. Caggiano's website on this project?

Q. No, sir.

A. No? Maybe I shouldn't be asking questions.

Q. I think I will only go that far.

A. Without marking it into evidence, would you

like to read a copy of it?

Q. No. If you could answer my question --

A. That's the answer to the question, right

there.

Q. Please explain it in your own words.

MS. ALBERTSON: He has faxed over portions

of his website and that the board does have the

documents.
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THE WITNESS: Portions?

MS. ALBERTSON: Yes, major portions.

Q. Please explain it in your own words.

A. Let me say it this way --

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: This may be too wide

open.

A. Look, in all fairness, this Monday was the

42nd anniversary of a very severe mental problem that

I lived with for 42 years so I understand it. That's

what that is. And 20 years ago, this board wouldn't

be here today but in today's society, with political

correctness, having to do the right thing, that's why

we are here. I understand that. I understand that

and I don't know how you get around it because if you

come up with an anti-Caggiano response, you will be

getting emails all night long and faxes, hundreds.

That's why the director of the Sussex County Soil

Conservation District had to take him to court because

he was getting faxes 3, 4, 5 o'clock in the morning,

tons of them. I mean it was ridiculous. And you have

got to feel badly about it. It's something that you

have to feel badly about.

And what happens is he goes to -- I wish

this wasn't on the record. I don't want him coming

after me.
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CHAIRMAN VERNICK: I was going to say it's

best we stop. Stop it there.

THE WITNESS: I will.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Let me ask a question.

MR. ANGELINE: I have one.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Let me have one because

I did not do this. There is something we left out and

I have got to get it on the record.

BY CHAIRMAN VERNICK:

Q. It's on this plan but it's smeared on this

plan so I'm going to ask you to read under general

notes item number nine. What is this, S-i? It's

really S-1. It's note number nine. It's smeared at

the end. Can you read that into the record.

A. "All open areas with exception of trees to

be preserved to be graded and grassed."

Q. Okay. Read it one more time.

A. "All open areas with exception of trees to

be preserved to be graded and grassed."

Q. What does that mean to you?

A. That means if there were trees to be

preserved in the open areas, they would be preserved.

Q. What are the open areas?

A. Anything outside, for instance, the 18 foot

barrier.

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
www.cipolIoni-associates.com



61

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q. So anything outside the 18 foot

conservation buffer?

A. Yes.

Q. This is saying the trees are to be

preserved?

A. No, I didn't say that.

Q. What does it say?

A. May I read it again?

Q. Okay. Take your time because I'm confused

by it.

A. Everyone gets confused over this. "All

open areas with the exception of trees to be

preserved," there aren't any.

Q. Okay. So there aren't any?

A. There aren't any.

Q. Does that say that here?

A. That there aren't? No, of course not.

That's kind of a standard note, I think.

Q. And essentially, it says all open areas

with the exception of trees --

A. To be preserved.

Q. To be preserved, to be graded and grassed.

MR. PURCELL: That sentence can be

reworded, all open areas to be graded and grassed

except where noted that trees are to be preserved.
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THE WITNESS: Where noted.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: That's fine, I agree.

It could be said better.

Q. But you got this note from where? It's on

your plan.

A. Yes.

Q. Where did that come from?

A. I guess we have had many discussions, Judy

Keith and I, Mr. Dawalt, in putting this together, we

put these notes on there. Sometimes they are notes

that result from a meeting with the board and that's

how -- it's hard to say how it comes about.

Q. Let me say this: The intent of it was that

all areas to be graded, what was it --

A. Seeded.

Q. Seeded and graded, other than those trees

to be preserved, right? You knew or at least did you

know that outside the conservation buffer, what was

your perception of what was to be preserved as far as

trees were concerned?

A. None.

Q. None, okay. And that's Mr. Cilo's

recollection, too. Why even put "trees" in that?

A. If we are putting them along the sidewalk.

Q. Along the sidewalk?
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A. Proposed trees.

MR. PURCELL: I think what board member

Vernick is saying is why even mention trees to be

preserved in that sentence?

Q. Why even say it? I will tell you that's

what is being looked at, it's being interpreted that

trees were to be preserved in the nonconservation

buffer because of that note. Do you understand the

confusion that note has presented?

A. I absolutely understand the confusion.

Q. And that's what is being seized on right

now with these trees, that there were trees to be

preserved outside of the conservation buffer based on

this note that you put on your plan.

A. Of course. However, to be preserved would

have to be noted because there were a lot of little

trees on that side that had to come down because of

filling and grading.

Q. You are saying there should have been trees

noted if they were to be preserved?

A. To be preserved, they should have been

noted to be preserved and you put a barrier around it

and that's it.

MR. ANGELINE: Tree protection.

Q. But you understand if this note were

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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written differently, there would be no issue?

A. That note will never be written like that

again.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: That's all I have. Yes?

MR. ANGELINE: I just have a couple.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: You moved your seat, Mr.

Vice President?

MR. ANGELINE: I wanted to get closer.

BY MR. ANGELINE:

Q. Mr. Inhoffer, your responsibility on this

site was to do only engineering. Is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And who established the 18 foot

conservation easement?

A. I think the board.

Q. The board did?

A. Was responsible for that, yes.

Q. So would you please explain to me why if

that was the case, there is a 15 foot proposed

drainage easement that encroaches into the 18 foot

buffer easement?

A.

A.

And that is?

Q. That is shown right here.

Here?

Q. No, not that. It's proposed. It's right

CIPOLLONI & ASSOCIATES, INC. (609) 348-9190
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here. Do you see this line?

A. That's the 18 foot.

Q. No, that's the 15 foot. Do you see it, 15

foot drainage easement? The 18 foot easement goes

beyond that. Do you see it? So that part of that 15

foot proposed drainage easement is lying within the 18

foot buffer easement.

A. Okay.

Q. Why did that take place that way?

A. Because --

Q. What was the purpose of that?

A. Probably Mr. Cilo wanted a 10 foot drainage

easement in case somebody had to get in and clean a

pipe.

Q. But if that happens, that means that the

integrity of the 18 foot buffer easement would be

violated.

A. Not if you didn't dig in. You could walk

on it.

Q. You could walk on it, too, but --

A. You are not going to dig because the pipe

is out of the 18 feet.

Q. I see where the pipe is out of that. Okay.

Did you provide that proposed drainage easement and

place it on the plan?
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A. I can't answer that. I don't think so.

Q. When did you engage Pittenger & Keith to do

the boundary and topo survey?

A. I didn't engage them.

Q. Who did?

A. Mr. Dawalt.

Q . He did?

A. Yes.

Q. What, if anything, did she put on this plan

other than the boundary and topo or the Pittenger --

A. She did all the drafting.

Q. She did all the drafting?

A. Yes.

Q. For this whole project?

A. Yes.

Q. That's interesting.

MR. ANGELINE: Okay, that's all I have.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: Any other questions?

Would you like to make a closing statement? You have

been here for quite awhile.

THE WITNESS: It's all very interesting. I

think the last question was about why am I here.

That's a good question because I should have retired.

And I can't answer that question. We all know why I'm

here. It's a sign of the times. I will -- I'm going
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to look for that wall detail but I think it's probably

in the ordinance for the borough and that's what I

relied on.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: If you could give us a

plan, that would be wonderful.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

CHAIRMAN VERNICK: I thank you for coming

today. I know it's been a long day. We appreciate

it. Have a safe ride home.

(Whereupon the proceedings

concluded at 3:45 p.m.)
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C E R T I F I C A T E

I, GARY M. TALPINS, a Certified Shorthand

Reporter and Notary Public of the State of New Jersey,

do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and

accurate transcript of my stenographic notes of the

within proceedings, to the best of my ability.

Gary M. Talpins

C.S.R. No. XI-00561

Notary Public Number 63891

My Commission Expires 2/19/10
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